#### **Public Document Pack**



### Minutes of the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel

(to be confirmed at the next meeting)

Date: Wednesday, 24 February 2021

Venue: Microsoft Teams Virtual Meeting

PRESENT:

**Councillor** T Davies (Chairman)

**Councillor** P J Davies (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors: J E Butts, Mrs T L Ellis, J S Forrest, N J Walker and

S Cunningham

Also Councillor S D Martin (Item 6 & 7)

Present:



#### 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies of absence received at this meeting.

#### 2. MINUTES

It was AGREED that the Minutes of the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel held on the 01 October 2020 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

#### 3. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were no Chairman's announcements.

#### 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR DIRECTIONS

There were no declarations of interest received at this meeting.

#### 5. **DEPUTATIONS**

There were no deputations made at this meeting.

#### 6. CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO PUBLICATION LOCAL PLAN

The Panel received a presentation from the Head of Planning Strategy and Economic Development, Gayle Wootton and Principal Planner (Strategy) Peter Drake. The presentation provided an overview of the Consultation Responses to the Publication Local Plan which completed on the 18 December 2020.

Members considered the contents of the presentation which was delivered covering each section of the Local Plan in turn. Members asked questions to Officers and sought further details on the consultation responses where appropriate.

At the invitation of the Chairman, the Executive Member for Planning and Development Councillor S Martin took part in discussions on this item.

A copy of the presentation is appended to these Minutes.

RESOLVED that the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel note the contents of the presentation.

#### 7. PLANNING STRATEGY UPDATES

The Panel received a presentation form the Head of Planning Strategy and Economic Development, Gayle Wootton updating Members on aspects of Planning Strategy that are significant but do not require an individual report for consideration.

The presentation began with an update on the Council's current Housing Delivery Test position. Members expressed their concerns over the details provided which showed a pessimistic outlook. The main point of discussion for Members of the Panel was that the Government's targets have not reflected the nitrate neutrality issue which will have a significant detrimental effect on the Council's ability to meet the Housing Delivery Test going forward. Officers explained that - until a sustainable, long term nitrate mitigation strategy is in place, the Housing Delivery Test is going to be a concern for many years to come. Officers also explained that the Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) have continued throughout the last two years to lobby Members of Parliament on this matter, but as yet no resolution has been identified.

At the invitation of the Chairman, the Executive Member for Planning and Development Councillor S Martin took part in discussions on this item.

A copy of the presentation is appended to these Minutes.

RESOLVED that the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel note the contents of the presentation.

#### 8. EXECUTIVE BUSINESS

(1) Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule

No comments received.

(2) Hook Lake Management Study

No comments received.

(3) Nitrate Mitigation - Legal Agreement with Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust & Isle of Wight Council

No comments received.

(4) Local Development Scheme

No comments received.

(5) Government Consultation on White Paper 'Planning for the Future'

No comments received.

(6) Publication (Regulation 19) Local Plan

No comments received.

(7) Partnership for South Hampshire Statement of Common Ground

No comments received.

(8) Introducing charges for heritage advice and design codes, and the use of Planning Performance Agreements

No comments received.

#### (9) Hook Lake Management Study - Award of Contract

No comments received.

#### 9. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY PANEL PRIORITIES

The Chairman asked Members of the Panel to consider the Scrutiny Priorities for the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel.

Members discussed a number of topics including; Welborne delivery prospects, particularly in relation to the funding and delivery of the J10 M27 improvement scheme; the anticipated impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the delivery of the Fareham Town Centre Vision and the likely need for future regeneration initiatives; and a number of Highway matters.

It was agreed that Officers would provide an update on the delivery of Welborne and the delivery of the Fareham Town Centre Vision as appropriate within the 2021/22 municipal year. Officers also advised that through consultation with the Chairman an invitation would be sent to Hampshire County Council to attend a future meeting of the Panel to update on the South East Hampshire Rapid Transit (SEHRT) project.

RESOLVED that the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel:-

- (a) considered the Scrutiny Priorities;
- (b) asked Officers to schedule Updates on the delivery of Welborne and the delivery of the Fareham Town Centre Vision and associated regeneration as appropriate within the 2021/22 municipal year; and
- (c) asked Officers, in consultation with the Chairman, to invite Hampshire County Council to a future meeting of the Panel to update on the South East Hampshire Rapid Transit project.

(The meeting started at 6.03 pm and ended at 9.57 pm).

#### age 5

# Regulation 19 Local Plan Consultation Summary of Responses

Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel

24th February

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

- The Council undertook a Regulation 19 consultation on its Publication Local Plan in November/December last year.
- The consultation lasted 6 weeks.
- Special Edition Fareham Today and Virtual Exhibition.
- Received over 300 responses with 1,300 visits to the virtual exhibition.
- Government made its announcement regarding Standard Methodology during the last week of the consultation.

### The Process

- Anyone/organisation responding was required to comment on specific questions or tests only (this is different from previous consultations):
  - 1. Legal Compliance Does the plan meet the legal requirements?
  - 2. Soundness Has the Plan been positively prepared?
  - 3. Duty to Cooperate Has the Council engaged and worked with its neighbours effectively?
- They were asked to identify which specific policy or paragraphs their representation concerned.
- All the responses will be forwarded to the Planning Inspector for consideration.



- Officers in Planning Strategy have been reviewing all the representations.
- They have been sorted into alphabetical and policy order (required for submission to the Inspector).
- Responses have been summarised on a Policy basis (around 800 individual comments).
- The following slides summarise the key points/themes from those representations on each chapter.

- 2. Insufficient methods of consultation and Fareham Today not received.
- 3. Consultation too complicated and restrictive.
- 4. Community generated evidence carries less weight than consultants' evidence.
- 5. Should not base housing need on a proposed figure.
- 6. No reference made to 2017 unadopted Plan.
- 7. Welborne Plan should be reviewed.
- 8. Need to consider unmet need in light of PfSH figure of 10,000.
- 9. Duty to Cooperate Statement should include agreed SoCGs.



Page 9

# 2. Vision and Key Strategic Priorities

- 1. Residents query the range of methods used to consult and variance from SCI.
- 2. Warsash residents questioning redrawing of the settlement boundary around HA1 Plan does not deliver on priority of maximising development in urban areas, and that infrastructure is inadequate and allocation should be removed.
- 3. Residents feel a greater vision is required to help the town centre survive.
- 4. Plan fails to address commitment to carbon neutrality.
- 5. Development industry feels Plan could go further in recognising role within subregion especially in meeting unmet need and addressing climate change in infrastructure provision.



- 2. Also concern that decision has been made to rewild strategic gap without consultation
- 3. Developers suggest that plan should prioritise areas that can achieve 'good growth'.
- 4. GBC reiterate concerns around development in the Strategic Gap.
- 5. HCC support removal of HA2 and SGAs to which they had holding objection.



# 4. Housing Need and Supply

- 1. Some residents feel housing supply does not focus on development in urban areas and concern at level of development in Western Wards.
- 2. PCC request Fareham take 1,000 dwellings unmet need.
- 3. Two views on unmet need. Residents and CPRE suggest agreeing to take any PCC unmet need is premature ahead of PfSH SoCG developers suggest the same but because unmet need figure may be higher.
- 4. Developers feel housing numbers are flawed and out of date Council should allocate additional housing sites.
  - 5. Also that despite contingency there is still a heavy reliance on Welborne and past under-delivery has not been dealt with.
  - 6. Developers also feel that there is no evidence to support removal of certain sites.
  - 7. Welborne Plan should also be reviewed as delivery is questionable.



- 1. Resident responses made primarily in relation to sites HA1 Warsash Cluster, HA32 Egmont Nurseries, HA42 Cams Alders and HA45 Rear of 77 Burridge Road.
- 2. Opposition to all four sites unfair spatial distribution across the borough.
- 3. Infrastructure provision of concern, and HA32 exclusion from ASLQ considered inappropriate.
- 4. HA42 considered inappropriate on basis of SINC impact, drainage and impact on setting of Fort Fareham (Natural England and Historic England).
- 5. Questions over suitability of HA4 given 2 refusals of the application.
- 6. Policy wording comments about a number of sites.



Page 13

## Housing Allocations

- 7. A number of alternative sites have been proposed through the consultation responses.
- 8. Majority of those are already known and have been assessed through the SHELAA and discounted for various reasons.
- 9. Only two new sites Land west of Peak Lane and Land South of Swanwick Lane.
- 10. Some of the discounted sites re-submitted at lower yields to address SHELAA concerns.
  - 11. Newlands (various), West of Downend Road (500-600), Rookery Farm (150-200), East of Newgate Lane (385) and West of Botley Road (350-400) all proposed.



- 1. Some resident opposition to the Gypsy and Traveller site in Burridge provision should be spread across the borough lack of consultation a concern.
- 2. Developers suggest amendments to urban area boundaries in relation to HP1.
- 3. Support from developers on HP2 but residents feel it is too open and subjective.
- 4. Support from developers on HP4 but GBC object as could undermine the Plan's development strategy policies they suggest that if no 5yhls first area of search is outside urban area.
- 5. Developers seek flexibility in affordable housing policy HCC want to see greater range of needs considered for specialist housing.
- 6. GBC object to HP6 as could undermine the Plan's development strategy policies, CPRE consider there should be an upper limit to prevent large sites.



Page 15

## 5. Housing Policies

- 7. Developers feel policy HP7 is both inflexible and unjustified as not supported by robust evidence and impact on viability not fully considered.
- 8. HCC state that HP8 should specifically mention specialist provision for affordable and developers feel that this policy should be restricted to highly accessible locations such as town/district centres only.
- 9. Developers raise concerns and object to requirement in HP9 for sites over 40 units to provide 10% self build querying the justification for 40. Council should allocate self build sites instead.
  - 10. Support from neighbouring Council's on HP11 but concern that the provision of 3 pitches is minimum requirement would like to see more.



- 2. Questions from developers over site allocations in terms of market attractiveness and deliverability. Suggest that additional sites should be included.
  - Developers argue policy E5 should allow for flexibility in expansion beyond existing boundaries.
  - 4. Support from GBC towards E7 Solent Airport, but objections from residents on basis that this is not an 'airport' and should not be promoted as such and that 40,000 movements is too excessive in this location.



- 1. Some residents feel that local retail/commercial figures do not cater for additional houses in Warsash and plan should include retail floorspace for western wards.
- 2. Concern from some residents that out of town shopping is not defined in R2. Out of town shopping takes custom from local shopping areas.
- 3. Concern from HCC and Sport England that policy R4 is overly restrictive in reprovision terms but not restrictive enough in terms of losing facilities.





- 1. HCC question whether the Plan goes far enough in supporting government and HCC objectives and residents environmental organisation feel need inclusion of carbon reduction and sustainability targets, energy efficiency standards etc.
- 2. Support for policy on flood risk with some minor additions, however developers would like to see more flexibility regarding SuDS.
- 3. Natural England want to see the policy CC3 help facilitate the relocation of valued environmental assets away from risk areas.
- 4. Residents want to set targets set for carbon emission reductions through policy CC4.



### 9. Natural Environment

- 1. Support for policy NE1 from CPRE and NE but concern from residents that wording is too weak in relation to when development 'cannot be avoided'.
- 2. Developers feel 10% requirement for Net Gain in NE2 is premature and goes beyond current requirements. Residents and Natural England supportive and seek monitoring scheme. PCC raise the issue of potential 'unmet' net gain from their Plan.
- 3. NE welcome policy NE3 and developers agree with financial contribution approach but residents voicing concerns that strategy is not successful enough and requires tougher measures.
  - 4. Fisherman object on basis that NE4 does not protect habitats in the Solent and some concern from CPRE about effectiveness of mitigation. Developers believe methodology is too onerous and results in excessive mitigation.



- 6. Support for policy NE6 but residents feel a replacement quota should be required for every tree felled and woodland trust feel more protection is required for ancient woodland and veteran trees.
- 7. HCC and CPRE support policy NE8 but feel it could go further by requiring sustainable transport and being focused around mass public transport hubs. Developers feel the provision of Electric Vehicle Charging Points is too onerous and will impact viability.



### 9. Natural Environment

- 8. Support for policy NE9 with suggestions would be better formalised as a green belt. GBC and PCC highlight importance of cross-boundary links and networks including a joint strategy for the strategic gap.
- 9. Some residents feel policy NE10 fails to protect open space and should include minimum requirements. NGOs identify areas where policy could be improved and linked to wider green infrastructure.



## 10. Transport and other Infrastructure

- Residents concerned about the deliverability of TIN1 especially cycling and walking as alternative to car. Not enough done through the plan to promote it. Specific concern in relation to accessibility of Warsash 'peninsula' and traffic impacts.
- 2. PCC supportive of sustainable transport links between authorities.
- 3. Plan should recognise A27 transport corridor study in relation to TIN2 currently being undertaken by highway authority. Residents concerned that Warsash hasn't been included in transport assessment TA therefore invalid.
  - 4. PCC, GBC and HCC all supportive of TIN3 and safeguarding of SEHRT route.
  - 5. Resident concern over infrastructure provision through TIN4 especially regarding Warsash. Concern over IDP assessment and how valid it is.
  - 6. Developers feel TIN4 needs to be clear on CIL/s106 relationship.



- 1. Some residents feel that targets on D1 should be set higher than building regs whereas developers responded say the bar has been pushed too high.
- 2. General support from other bodies, but request from Police to seek addition to aid crime prevention.
- 3. Developer concern that policy D3 interferes on private property rights with regards to preventing/depressing returns to landowners.
- 4. Water and environmental bodies supportive of policy D4, developers against as requirements should be optional if for a nitrate issue. Evidence required to demonstrate need for higher standards.
- 5. Developers strongly advocating that policy D5 is unsound and unjustified as there isn't the evidence of need.

### FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

- 1. Positive response to policy HE1.
- 2. Resident response to HE2 made in connection to Warsash housing sites the allocation of housing at Warsash does not preserve or enhance the Conservation area policy is unsound.

BOROUGH COUNCIL

### Planning Strategy Update



# Housing delivery test

#### Looks backward

3 previous financial years

Started in 2018, looked at number of houses built between April 2015-March 2018

Judged against housing requirement in Local Plan if less than 5 years old, or standard methodology.

#### Three tests in one

- 95% HDT Action Plan
- 85% add 20% buffer to 5 year housing land supply
- 75% 'failure' automatic tilted balance, presumption in favour



# HDT years

HDT years		Years included in the calculation								
HDT 2020	17/18	18/19	19/20							
HDT 2021		18/19	19/20	20/21						
<b>PHDT 2022</b>			19/20	20/21	21/22					
HDT 2023				20/21	21/22	22/23				
HDT 2024					21/22	22/23	23/24			
HDT 2025						22/23	23/24	24/25		



### HDT 2018 results

	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	Total	%
Page	Local Plan (DSP)	Local Plan (DSP)	Local Plan (DSP) plus Welborne		
Requirement	147	267	327	741	
No of homes delivered	374	356	291	1,021	137%



## HDT 2019 results

	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	Total	%
	Local Plan (DSP)	Local Plan (DSP) plus Welborne	Local Plan (DSP) plus Welborne		
हु Requirement	267	327	347	941	
No of homes delivered	356	291	290	937	99%



### HDT 2020 results

		2017/18	2018/19	2019/2020	Total	%
Page 32		Local Plan (DSP) plus Welborne	Local Plan (DSP) plus Welborne	Local Plan (DSP) plus Welborne		
32	Requirement	327	347	428*	1,102	
	No of homes delivered	291	290	285	886	79%

<sup>\*</sup> One month reduction in requirement due to Covid-19 national lockdown. 467 becomes 428



## Implications

HDT Action Plan – to be published within six months of the results being published, i.e. July 2021 20% buffer applied to 5 year housing land supply, instead of 5%

#### **Decision-taking**

- Increases the number of homes that Council needs to identify land for in the next five years
- 508 dwellings per annum becomes 610
- Harder to demonstrate a five year supply. For example, current 4.2 years supply would be 4.8 years with only 5% buffer

#### Plan-making

- Does not increase overall housing number over the plan period
- Local Plan needs to identify sufficient sites to meet 5yr requirement to be found sound
- Either through existing permissions already granted or allocations with short-term delivery

20% buffer does not apply to next year's HDT i.e. the annual requirement does not increase by 20%.



# HDT projections

HDT years	Years included in the calculation								
HDT 2020	17/18	18/19	19/20						79%
HDT 2021		18/19	19/20	20/21					
HDT 2022			19/20	20/21	21/22				
HDT 2023				20/21	21/22	22/23			
HDT 2024					21/22	22/23	23/24		
HDT 2025						22/23	23/24	24/25	



#### Moving to Standard Method increases the requirement

HDT years	Housi	Housing requirement (either Local Plan if less than five years old or standard methodology)									
	17/18	18/19	19/20	20/21	21/22	22/23	23/24	24/25			
HDT 2020	327	347	428*						1,102		
HDT 2021		347	428*	508					1,283		
<b>HDT 2022</b>			428*	508	508				1,444		
HDT 2023				508	508	508			1,524		
HDT 2024					508	508	508		1,524		
HDT 2025						508	508	508	1,524		



#### Completions need to increase

HDT years		Number of homes built in the Borough								
	17/18	18/19	19/20	20/21	21/22	22/23	23/24	24/25		
HDT 2020	291	290	285						N/A	
HDT 2021		290	285	?*					387 homes	
₩DT 2022			285	?*	?				798 homes	
HDT 2023				?*	?	?			1,143 homes	
HDT 2024					?	?	?		1,143 homes	
HDT 2025						?	?	?	1,143 homes	



2015/2016	2016/2017	2017/2018	2018/2019	2019/2020	2020/2021
301	244	299	199	74	270*
			1		



- Severely impacted permissions in 2019/2020
- Not seen the impact of this yet in HDT as permissions granted in 2019/20 would not be expected to be built until 2021/21 at the earliest



Page 37

## Impact of nitrates

Impact of nitrates will affect HDT 2021 results (April 2018-March 2021)

Possibly up to HDT 2023 (April 2020-March 2023) because of the low level of permissions leading to low levels of completions.

HDT years		Years included in the calculation								
HDT	17/18	18/19	19/20	-	-	-	-	-		
2020 HDT		18/19	19/20	20/21						
2021 HDT			19/20	20/21	21/22					
2022			10/20			00/00				
HDT 2023				20/21	21/22	22/23				
HDT 2024					21/22	22/23	23/24			
HDT						22/23	23/24	24/25		
2025										

Low level of permissions impacting build out rates



#### Authority Monitoring Report 19/20 Headlines

Requirement to publish document providing update on Local Plan preparation timescale, and key monitoring data.

- The year that permissions were significantly reduced due to nitrate neutrality requirement
- 285 new homes built in Borough, of which 27 were affordable.
- Self Build requirement of 35 permissions met six months ahead of deadline (need to permit 61 by 30 October 2020 to meet next deadline)
- £870k of CIL money spent, including £426k on Fareham's new art venue, and £212k on upgrading play areas in Portchester, Titchfield, Sarisbury and Fareham.
- Hill Head prom remedial works and Cador Drive seawall toe repairs completed (Coastal Partners)
- Stubbington Bypass commenced, A27 Bishopsfield Road to Station roundabout completed.

